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Relating to prohibiting residential rental licensure fees  

Minutes:                                                 1 

 
Chairman J. Dockter: Opened the hearing on HB 1227. 
 
Rep. Vetter: Introduced HB 1227. (Handout 1).  
 
Rep. Johnson: Do other cities require the same information and don’t charge the fee? 
 
Rep. Vetter: Not that I know of.  
 
Vice Chairman Pyle: The city of Casselton charges the trash removal by apartment.  
 
Rep. Johnson: So that would come through on your utility bill? 
 
Vice Chairman Pyle: Yes, but your question was does a city require this information. 
 
Rep. Johnson: My guess in Grand Forks this is an administrative fee for processing 
paperwork.   
 
Rep. Vetter: This was put into place many years ago, there are homes being rented by the 
university and when the students would have parties PD would not know who to write the 
ticket to. It’s easier to write a ticket to the person owning the property than the student 
renting. We are the only city that charges to rent your property.  
 
Rep. Hatlestad: Are you with this bill threatening zoning regulations of the city?   
 
Rep. Vetter: We are not talking about zoning. This is prohibiting residential rental licenses. 
 
Rep K. Koppelman: The city is charging a fee to the renter or property owner?  
 
Rep. Vetter: To the property owner for the right to rent the property.  
 
Rep. Adams: Do they charge you for a ticket of occupancy each year? 
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Rep. Vetter: No  
 
Rep. Adams: Do you have a certificate of occupancy.  
 
Rep. Vetter: I’m not sure.  
 
(10:38) Blake Crosby: Executive Director of League of Cities; (Handout 2,3). Read his 
testimony.  
 
Rep. Johnson: The process of monitoring and expecting is ongoing; can you go into that? 
How does it work? Do they send out someone? 
 
Mr. Crosby: I do not have full details on that. They go in on a 4-year process. The 
neighborhoods were concerned about safety, law enforcement, fire, traffic, noise, they 
wanted to clamp down but the city asked for a compromise. This was the compromise with 
landlords and the citizens that lived in those neighborhoods.  
 
Chairman J. Dockter: Closed the hearing.  
 
Reopens for committee work.  
 
Rep. Adams: Made a do not pass motion.  
 
Rep. Longmuir: Second the motion.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: I’m going to resist a do not pass motion because for a city to say we 
are going to charge a fee and this is property rights issue. They decide to rent it out 
because it is their property, and then the city wants to charge a fee. They are not using 
anything violates zoning regulations, I assume they are paying water, sewer, garbage plus 
property taxes.  
  
Rep. Fegley: If you have a R-1 which is a single family residence and put 5 non-family 
people in there doesn’t that violate that ordinance.  It’s not a single family residence 
anymore.  
 
Chairman J. Dockter: It will start becoming an issue with older neighborhoods when the 
residents pass away or go to a nursing home the homes are being bought by investors. 
There will be 5 or 6 vehicles in these neighborhoods that should be single family.  
 
Rep. Adams: This was agreed on by the property owners. The $25 is a rotation on 
inspections to ensure the house it up to code. That is basically what the money is for.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: How does setting a fee solve that? It doesn’t make the neighborhood 
more livable.  
 
Rep. Guggisberg: I don’t see this as a zoning problem because it is zoned so they can 
rent there. They are just charging a fee which is common for cities to do. We do fire 
inspection if they use a welder or torch they have to get that inspected which is an extra 
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fee. They are several different things that take work for a city, this is not to penalize but a 
service the city provides and someone has to pay for it.  
 
Rep. Fegley: Cities have their ordinances and I believe we should leave it up the cities, 
and the state shouldn’t be a part of it.    
 
Vice Chairman Pyle: Did Rep. Vetter go to city council and ask to have this removed?  
 
Rep. Adams: Inaudible.  
  
Rep. Hatlestad: Did Grand Forks change their ordinance for that area from R-1 to R-5?  
 
Rep. Adams: Inaudible.   

  
      Vote #1 yes 7, no 7, absent 0. 
 
      Chairman J. Dockter: We can keep this and do no recommendation.   
     

Rep K. Koppelman: Made a do pass motion. 
 
Rep. Ertelt: Second the motion.  
 
Vote #2 yes 9, no 5, absent 0 
 
Carrier: Rep K. Koppelman  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to prohibiting residential rental licensure fees.  
 

Minutes:                                                 Written attachment #1 pg1-3: Rep. Vetter 
Written attachment # 2: Phil Vanyo 
Written attachment # 3: Blake Crosby for Ken Vein 
Written attachment #4-: Senator Kreun  
Written attachment #5: Sen. Kreun handouts 5- #12 

 
Chairman Burckhard opened the hearing on HB1227. Senators Burckhard, Anderson, D. 
Larson, Kannianen, Dotzenrod were present. Senator J. Lee was absent. 
 
Representative Vetter: (:23-4:48) introduced the bill and spoke in support of HB1227. 
Written attachment #1. 
 
Senator Anderson: Some cities probably accomplish a similar goal by saying that if I want 
to rent out an apartment in my house I have it inspected. They have to check to see if I have 
a CO2 detector, carbon monoxide detector and so forth. So often times either a fee for that 
or some way that other cities might accomplish that other than just say, if you want to rent 
your property you have to pay us $50 a month or something. So, how do you see this bill 
affecting the cities right to say if you’re going to rent to somebody else you have those things 
inspected and those other requirements in place? 
 
Representative Vetter: Well currently other cities do have a similar program that Grand 
Forks has. Fargo has one and I believe that Bismarck has something similar to that. But they 
just don’t charge. The problem that I have is charging them to say if you want to rent this 
property, you need to pay. For instance, Fargo does it right now. They have a program where 
they inspect their rental properties, they just don’t charge for that license. The money comes 
out of their general funds. 
 
Senator Anderson: So, my question is does this prevent the city from charging a fee for that 
inspection? 
 
Representative Vetter: It does not prevent them from charging for an inspection or any other 
type of those types of things, but what it does prevent is that it prevents them from charging 
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a fee to just rent your property. In my particular case, I rent out my basement apartment and 
in order to rent my basement apartment I need to pay the city to rent it.  
Senator Larson: Does that mean then that you pay a monthly fee or a one-time fee? 
Representative Vetter: No it is yearly fee, an annual fee. 
 
Senator Larson: So, is this annual fee whether you rent it for the whole year, or just you like 
some people in Bismarck do when the legislators are in town, and they decide to go south 
so it is only a part of the year. So is that like an annual fee whether its part time or full time? 
 
Representative Vetter: If the capitol was in Grand Forks, then yes you would have to pay a 
fee to rent out your house to the legislators.  
 
Senator Anderson: So, this might be a question for the city of Grand Forks, but how would 
they treat somebody for example who builds some apartment buildings and has 200 units in 
the city of Grand Forks. Would they pay by the unit or not pay a fee or how does that work? 
 
Representative Vetter: Actually this is just deals with residential properties, so an apartment 
I believe the definition for residential is I believe anything four units and below is what I believe 
it is. So in the case of an apartment complex, this bill won’t have any effect on that. I am not 
quite sure if they do charge for their apartments or not. I am not quite sure 
 
Phil Vanyo, North Dakota Association of Realtors, spoke in support of HB1227. Written 
testimony #2. (9:57-18:37) 
 
Chairman Burckhard: The city council is elected to determine the budget and laws of this 
city, correct? The city of Grand Forks this was done as a result of the will of the city council. 
That is normal is it not? 
 
Mr. Phil Vanyo: To rezone was after multiple times of it being to keep it the same, that wasn’t 
good enough. They kept on. The licensing fees was, there wasn’t an attempt to say let’s get 
the parking deal under control. Let’s get the loud parties under control. In all honesty and 
with no disrespect to Senator Kreun was on the city council and I really respect the man I 
really do. But it almost appeared at the time that this was going against residential 
homeowners because commercial buildings are affected by this. This has nothing to do with 
commercial rentals. This is single family dwellings. So I do agree the city council is there to 
look out. But they weren’t hearing all the sides in my opinion. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: For this fee, are there services that they come to the homeowner for 
that fee? Is there like a building inspection, fire code inspection, carbon monoxide detectors 
in the home and maybe some enhanced law enforcement that might be required by the city 
to check on city coming and going? Is there some cost that the city feels they have and 
maybe I should wait if there are others’ here who could answer that? It does appear that they 
impose this fee and there may be some cost that they feel they need to recover because of  
these rentals. Is there any argument to that effect? 
 
Mr. Phil Vanyo: I own the properties before the licensing fees were put in place and we had 
the same services. So there was an inspection and you’re required to get a certificate of 
occupancy on any home that you’re going to rent out. Of course when they get built have a 
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certificate of occupancy on new buildings. That was already in place. The inspections are 
there to look for safety issues. They look for carbon monoxide, smoke detectors, hand rails, 
safety issues for them. So those are already in place. Now did the fees help offset their 
budget? That is pretty much what it is. 
 
Senator Anderson: You mentioned the zoning and many cities control this by their zoning 
requirements. They did rezone R-1 as you indicated now did they grandfathered everybody 
who had a rental apartment prior to going to R-1 is that what happened? 
 
Mr. Phil Vanyo: Yes.  
Senator Anderson: So the four units were down and grandfathered and nobody else can 
rent their apartment now because it is zoned R-1?  
 
Mr. Phil Vanyo: No you can still rent but in the case of R-2 to R-1, nothing could be changed 
in there to make it a duplex or multi-family home. So you can rent any house in the city. But 
in this particular case, it was already zoned R-2 and at the meeting, in the petition they came 
up with a boundary area around UND. They came up saying this is area where they had a 
feeling of concern over. While again the planning and zoning department recommended not 
to change it, at the meeting, that I was at, and I sat down asking for any other questions, they 
made the motion to expand the territory. It passed 7-0. It wasn’t even like was that even an 
issue in those other areas. They just in my opinion overstepped their bounds.  
 
Opposition Testimony 
 
Blake Crosby, North Dakota League of Cities: I do not have prepared testimony because 
I anticipated that the Council Vice President from Grand Forks (23:20) He read the testimony 
of Mr. Ken Vein. Written testimony #3. We are opposed to HB1227. He asked for a do not 
pass on HB1227. 
 
Senator Anderson: This is kind of unrelated here, but the League of Cities was not here at 
the previous bill where we were talking about establishing minimum wage requirements 
within the city, I see this as kind of a similar thing as the state says you can’t take away 
somebody’s local property rights, or you can’t take away their ability to do business across 
the state. It is kind of similar to when Minot wanted parking meters and we said you can have 
parking meters but the people said we couldn’t. Sometimes we’re in favor of local property 
or local cities rights and sometimes not. Can you explain that to me? 
 
Mr. Blake Crosby: I do believe that we submitted testimony in opposition to the dictation that 
you cannot establish a minimum wage. But even with the three of us trying to do lobbying 
activities we’re stressed really thin. We are general theory is, we are opposed to mandates. 
Local government is local government and they should be making the decisions. So, we are 
opposed to mandates all across the board. We’ve discussed it numerous times, amongst 
myself and my staff, and if we have not stood up in public and oppose mandates we have 
submitted written testimony that opposes mandates. We do stick to one side of the equation. 
 
Senator Curt Kreun: (30:54-49:05) District 42, where I live and my district is in the heart of 
the area which was created for the use of the city ordinance and the ability to blend the 
landlords and the home owners’ residence together. Written attachment #4. City council 
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written attachment #5; Rezoning Task Force Written attachment #6; Neighborhood 
Development Concerns Committee, written attachment #7; Ordinance Information written 
attachment #8; The Rental Inspection Program, written attachment #9; Map rezoning from 
R2 to R-1, written attachment # 10. 
 
Senator Anderson: In reference to the map here of Senator Kreun. We’ve heard just a 
minute ago that there were R-1 was established and I don’t see a R-1 on here anyplace. 
 
Senator Kreun: No, it stayed R2 with the restrictions that were put on within the university 
district. Those restrictions are on there and they can still inside of that district can still be 
made into duplexes and those homes can still be made into duplexes if they want. Outside 
that area they cannot, that gray area. That was part of the agreement that we came up with 
over the period of time. 
 
Senator Kreun: Continued with his explanations of the handouts presented to the 
committee. (38:56) Procedure for Handling complaints on Rentals (written attachment #11); 
1st Mailing and Procedure for Rental Inspection Programs (written attachment #12). 
 
The issue for 1227 is the $25. It’s not really the issue of the whole portion of it. Yes, we do 
these inspections, we do health inspections, the safety inspections, we do that and I believe 
they go through everyone at least once every 5 years. But the main reason was in our 
conversations and in during this portion, we wanted to keep track of the 3 strikes that these 
three landlords would have. If they got the police called for these issues that are on their they 
would get a strike. We wanted to also keep track of the landlords because there are a lot of 
absentee landlords out there. So that is not a part of the inspection it. We also wanted to 
inform and keep up to date the landlords when they had an infraction. We would make a 
special effort to make sure that the landlords is there was a police report and what not, would 
get that police report and follow up on it because what happens down the road, is if their 
records stays clean over a period of time, I think after 3 years, one of those infractions falls 
off. If they work well and meet the criteria those infractions if they get them, and to be very 
honest with you, the landlords have been pretty good. We have not taken one license away 
because of those infractions. That is part of my concern is that we’ll still keep doing that, no 
matter if it’s the $25 or not. But the problem is during these negotiations it got heated at times, 
and there was a lot of emotions that took place over this period of time. One of the things 
when we got down to the very nitty gritty of and almost ready to solve it the residents came 
up with they wanted some bite into this thing. He continued with lengthy explanations. If you 
have a fee in there it has some value, because they get the license for it. This was the reason 
for this fee and I adamantly disagree that it had anything to do with the city. People that were 
there, the residents wanted that fee and it has a very high fee that they asked for, we 
negotiated it down to keep track of those items for the residents and the landlords. The only 
thing that I find out is that we used this in our contract with our rental agreement with our 
renters. I think that is probably one of the reasons why we’ve never had to actually utilize the 
rescinding of the license. So it works out very well.  
 
Senator Diane Larson: Have you found that fee that Grand Forks is charging has solved 
any problems? 
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Senator Kreun: Yes. Senator Diane Larson: The fee itself is a good problem solver because 
it’s kind of stick that you have over those property owners, is that kind of the way you were, 
or how you said it. 
 
Senator Kreun: If I said that that is not what it is. It is basically making the residents feel that 
they have something to manage at that time. Actually to be honest with you, two of these 
people that are with one being on this new list. When I went door to door to get this particular 
job, I got invited into their house and had coffee with them to thank me for doing that. I didn’t 
even recognize him or remember their name. But it is working. They brought this up yet and 
it still works and it still is viable and so I firmly believe that was the tipping point whether you 
believe it or not, it is a silly $25 thing but that was the tipping point that kept everybody happy. 
 
Senator Diane Larson: One of the things that was mentioned is the number of parking 
spaces per bedroom. I would think that there would be a lot of three bedroom homes that 
would only have 2 cars in a family for example. So I don’t know why it’s per bedroom instead 
of just per cars or something. I was curious as to how you came up with that. 
 
Senator Kreun: That is part of the parking ordinance throughout the city of Grand Forks. 
When you have residential rental areas and with your larger apartment complexes on there. 
There are parking requirements and they are hard surface. People were parking on the 
neighbor’s front yard, on their own front yards, people parking kiddywampus in front of 
people’s driveways. All of that took place and that is the problems that we solved in this. Now, 
are they all solved for everyday? No, body is perfect and that’s not going to happen. But 
overall these are the things solved the problems and actually worked quite well together. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: I was hesitant to ask questions here because we are late, but if there 
isn’t going to be anymore testimony I wanted to ask Senator Kreun a question. It is fairly short 
question and I hope a short answer. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: It seems to me that when you have the fee your able and the 
bookkeeper or treasurer in the city is able to separate out so that they know at the end of the 
year how much revenue was generated by the fee. So I assume that is true. Is it also true 
that they are able at the city level to determine how much expense that they feel that they 
had during the course of the year that they can attribute to match and provide service that 
would equate to that or is it just blended into the General Fund? 
 
Senator Kreun: They do keep track of the calls that is part of it. They do keep track of the 
landlords and they have that. But as far as if the police are called and it’s kind of melded 
because we had the university police, and we have the city police on there but they both 
make the calls. So yes, we can track some of those issues and the money of course does go 
into the General Fund.  
 
Chairman Burckhard closed the hearing on HB1227. 
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Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Burckhard called the committee together for discussion of HB1227. All senators 
are present. 
 
Chairman Burckhard: I have two in favor, and have 2 opposed. Phil Vanyo from the North 
Dakota Association of Realtors, Government Affairs Committee, and of course the introducer 
of the bill, Representative Vetter was in favor of the bill. League of Cities was opposed and 
Senator Kreun from District 42 was opposed. Now he would say this is a local issue.  
 
Senator D. Larson: Then the realtors were saying this was a private property rights issue, 
so. It is a hard one to figure.  
 
Senator J. Lee: Long before you had the hearing Senator Kreun had been talking about this 
with me, and I know that you got some of the history when the hearing took place. The reason 
for that as a little refresher and you can tell me if I am getting it incorrectly please. It was a 
human cry from the personal home owners about the kind of problems that were taking place 
with the same rental houses that were being bought. That happens in most college towns. 
They ended being brought up in Fargo, in many cases torn down and a great big building put 
into their place. In this case it is a matter of small houses or duplexes being rental properties. 
So I think it is important to understand a little bit about the history. So there we’re something 
like 18 hearings over a period of time with the public involved meetings and the agreement 
was that there would be a $25 a year fee for the owners of rental property in order to 
accommodate the fact that there are additional challenges for the city to be a part of that. It 
is kind of in a way like the ET zoning thing for Minot in that there is a differential that you see. 
It is really easy to inconsistent about this too, I also get that part. But anyway, there were 
people who were on the petition who requested it in the first place, who now had apparently 
had forgotten and they had their names on the other one. So, he was kind of chuckling about 
the fact that we all have poor memories sometimes. But $25 for a land lord to make sure that 
you have the kind of enforcement that you want and police coming in when there is a party 
and that stuff seems to be the reason why it was done in the first place. I don’t have any 
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heartburn one way or the other here, but, I see why they did it. It was done very collaboratively 
and I did kind of appreciate the kind of process that he was telling that took place which I 
think we have free clearly described in his testimony.  
 
Chairman Burckhard: My notes would suggest that there was reference made to a landlord 
3 strike rule where it kind of kept track of how many nuisances calls they’ve had about this 
property and I think some of the money was used for records to keep so they could keep 
track of that and I think it was also suggested that Rep. Vetter never brought this issue up to 
the city commission in Grand Forks, so they weren’t aware of it, so he just wants to around 
and make the state make the decision. So that’s what my notes would say. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: This again to me falls in that category of a local problem, where local 
leaders met, and established a process that went on for almost 2 years. They came up with 
a local solution. Then we get a bill introduced in our legislature that says, wait a minute, what 
are your local people doing down there. We are going to pass the law that says you can’t do 
that. It is another, we’re going to get more of these, this is a pattern telling local governments 
all the things that you have solutions and their locally devised meetings and hearings and so 
on, that where we don’t approve of it. The question is it a property right. I look at this question 
and say if it is a property right that’s been taken away, then I would agree with them. But I 
think it is not really a property right, I think it is a fee for service. The city has providing a 
zoning or different sort of tighter zoning in that area, that takes more law enforcement and 
takes more inspections, health department inspections that go on and so I looked at this and 
I thought well the city has done due diligence here. They’ve really put their effort into this to 
try and make this work. I think the process is pretty impressive what they did there. It has 
been in effect now for 12-13 years. Generally speaking of those problems’ they were 
encountering before they did this have marginally been resolved now by this process. So, as 
I said on the earlier bill, those that fall under this category to me I just can’t support. 
 
Senator Anderson: After people testified in favor of this bill, I had the impression that they 
had rezoned this R-1 and said you could only have one except then they let the others out. 
But that wasn’t the case really. That area is zoned R-2 and there is this just additional fee 
and some off parking requirements that if you rent an apartment and so forth. So, I am king 
of in agreement that the city settle this on an amicably basis and not everybody agreed to 
pay the $25 but I think they solved the problem locally. 
 
Chairman Burckhard: So you agree it is a local issue. Senator Anderson: I think so. 
 
Senator Kannianen: 3 bills into one conversation here trying to be consistent with what we 
are talking about with local control and when the state should be involved. I think that 
whenever a situation crosses boundary lines of a political sub, I think that is where we maybe 
have the responsibility to sometimes referee but, so that’s why I voted the way I did on the 
living wage bill because I think it can cross political subs. I agree I am going to vote against 
the bill for that reason, that it is a political subdivision issue. Then the Minot ETA I am going 
to vote for that one because I think that crosses political sub policy lines.  
 
Chairman Burckhard: Do we have a motion on this bill. 
 
Senator Judy Lee moved a do not pass on HB1227 
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Senator Dotzenrod:  2nd that motion 
 
Roll call vote: 5 yea-1 no -0 absent 
 
Carrier: Senator Dotzenrod 
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